

CHAPTER 99—H.F.No.557

[Coded in Part]

An act relating to cosmetology; the regulation of the schools and occupation of hairdressers and beauty culturists, and the state board thereof; amending Minnesota Statutes 1969, Sections 155.02, Subdivision 7a; 155.04; 155.05; 155.06, Subdivision 1; 155.08; 155.09, Subdivisions 4 and 5; 155.11, by adding a subdivision; 155.14; and 155.17; and repealing Minnesota Statutes 1969, Section 155.02, Subdivision 7.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Minnesota:

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1969, Section 155.02, Subdivision 7a, is amended to read:

Subd. 7a. **COSMETOLOGY; REGULATION.** A junior instructor is a licensed operator who is working under the supervision of a senior instructor for one year. The license fee for junior instructor is \$1, payable on or before June 30 in each year.

A senior instructor is a manager-operator having a high school education or its equivalent and who has had two years of practical experience or one year's experience as a junior instructor within the last five years, and who has passed an examination for a senior instructor. The fee for such examination is \$5, including the license for the first year. The license fee for a senior instructor is \$5 payable on or before June 30 in each year.

Any person who, prior to July 1, 1965, held a license as a manager-operator and then teaching as an instructor, as defined in this subdivision, shall be deemed a senior instructor upon payment of the license fee.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1969, Section 155.04, is amended to read:

155.04 **BOARD OF EXAMINERS.** For the purposes of this chapter, there is hereby created and established a board, to be known by the name and style of the Minnesota state board of ~~hairdressing and beauty culture examiners~~ cosmetology, which shall consist of three members, not more than two of whom shall reside in cities of the first class and all of whom shall reside in the state, and have an official seal.

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 1969, Section 155.05, is amended to read:

155.05 **MEMBERS OF BOARD.** The governor shall appoint the members of the Minnesota state board of ~~hairdressing and beauty culture examiners~~ cosmetology, each of whom shall have had five

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

years of experience within the last seven years and practice in this state in the occupation and practices as named within this chapter, and who is a senior instructor or has the qualifications to take the examination therefor, prior to the first appointment, one to serve one year, one to serve two years, and one to serve three years, or until their successors are duly appointed and have qualified, and thereafter the term of each member shall be three years. The governor may remove any member of the board with or without cause. The board members shall be citizens of this state and not members of, nor affiliated with, any school duly approved and teaching the practices, as defined herein, while a member of the board, nor shall any two members of the board be graduates of the same school, or system of schools, teaching the practices, as defined herein. Each member of the board shall take the oath provided by law for public officers.

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 1969, Section 155.06, Subdivision 1, is amended to read:

155.06 BOARD; ORGANIZATION, RULES, RECORDS, INSPECTIONS. Subdivision 1. The board shall on the second Tuesday of each year assemble at the state capitol or at such other place as such board has established offices pursuant to the provisions of this chapter and then and there organize by electing from among its members a president, a vice-president, and a secretary-treasurer to serve until their successors are elected and have qualified. The board shall appoint such assistants, inspectors, and clerical help as it may deem necessary to perform the work of the board. The appointments shall be made in accordance with the rules and regulations to be adopted by the board and chosen upon the basis of experience, training, and general qualifications for the work. Necessary expenses incurred in the transaction of the business of the board and necessary expenses of assistants, inspectors, and clerical help shall be fixed by the board. The board shall maintain an office for the conduct of its business. The secretary-treasurer and such other persons as are charged with and shall actually handle funds of the board shall provide to the state of Minnesota a corporate surety bond in the amount of \$10,000. The secretary-treasurer of the board shall maintain its office and devote his entire time to the duties thereof and receive an annual salary of ~~\$6,500~~ \$9,000, payable in semimonthly installments, and any necessary expenses incurred in the performance of his official duties.

Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 1969, Section 155.08, is amended to read:

155.08 COMPENSATION OF BOARD MEMBERS. Each member of the board except the secretary-treasurer shall receive the sum of ~~\$25~~ \$35 for each day employed in the actual discharge of his official duties and any necessary expenses incurred incidental thereto. Such days employed are not to exceed 100 days in any one year except that

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

in the months when state board examinations are given this limitation will not apply. Compensation and expenses of and for the board shall be paid out of the funds of the board deposited in the state treasury and not otherwise.

Sec. 6. Minnesota Statutes 1969, Section 155.09, Subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. (1) A manager-operator may be licensed as such under this chapter upon the payment of a fee of \$10, provided that he has practiced as an operator under the supervision of a manager-operator in this state for at least one year and upon complying with all other requirements applicable to a manager-operator as provided for in this chapter.

~~(2) A demonstrator may be licensed as such under this chapter upon payment of a fee of \$5, provided such person shall either be a licensed operator, a cosmetologist or manager-operator, or shall furnish the board with satisfactory proof that he has continuously practiced as an operator for at least one year before making application for license as a demonstrator.~~

Sec. 7. Minnesota Statutes 1969, Section 155.09, Subdivision 5, is amended to read:

Subd. 5. Renewal license fees shall be as follows:

For operator	\$3.00	<u>\$4.00</u>
For manager-operator	4.50	<u>\$5.50</u>
For demonstrator	5.00	
For manicurist	3.00	
For junior instructor	1.00	
For senior instructor	5.00	

~~Any person, residing in this state and holding an approved license to operate in the field of cosmetology within the state shall be granted a demonstrator's license without having to pay the regular fee required of nonresident applicants.~~

Sec. 8. Minnesota Statutes 1969, Section 155.11, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 7a. Any approved school may use occasional instructors or lecturers who would add to the general or specialized knowledge of the students, it being contemplated that such instructors or lecturers would come from the fields of science, pharmacology, medicine, law, salesmanship, psychology, public relations, or other business, art or profession.

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Sec. 9. Minnesota Statutes 1969, Section 155.14, is amended to read:

155.14 PRACTITIONERS FROM OTHER STATES. The board may dispense with and waive the examination for license upon the application of any person who is able to furnish documentary evidence and proof of having lawfully practiced in another state, territory, District of Columbia or foreign country for a period of at least two years prior to the time of such application for license in Minnesota, upon the payment of the fee of \$15 for license as provided in this chapter; ~~provided, in the case of a demonstrator, a certificate entitling him to practice as a demonstrator for a period not exceeding ten days from the date specified thereon, shall be issued by the board upon presentation by the applicant of a certified copy of the license issued by such other state, territory, District of Columbia, or foreign country to him as an operator therein. The non-resident temporary certificate for a demonstrator shall require a fee of \$1.50 for each such certificate.~~

Sec. 10. Minnesota Statutes 1969, Section 155.17, is amended to read:

155.17 NOTICE OF BOARD MEETINGS. Notice of meetings of the board ~~of hairdressing and beauty culture examiners~~ at which applicants or licensed practitioners are to appear shall be published once each week for three consecutive weeks before the date of such meetings in a daily newspaper in each city of the first class.

Sec. 11. Minnesota Statutes 1969, Section 155.02, Subdivision 7, is repealed.

Approved April 2, 1971.

CHAPTER 100—H.F.No.716

[Coded]

An act relating to banks, trust companies; total obligations or liability to a bank; defining mortgage guaranty insurance; amending Minnesota Statutes 1969, Section 48.24, by adding a subdivision.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Minnesota:

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1969, Section 48.24, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.